RHODE ISLAND CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2025 AT 11:00 AM

A meeting of the Finance Committee of the Rhode Island Convention Center Authority (hereinafter referred to as “Authority” “the CCA”
or the “Board” was held on September 25, 2025. The meeting was held in the McCarvill Boardroom, Second Floor, Rhode Island
Convention Center, pursuant to notice at the Rhode Island Convention Center, One Sabin Street, Providence, Rl and the Amica Mutual
Pavilion, One LaSalle Square, Providence, RI.

Board members in attendance were Jeffrey Hirsh, Dale Venturini, Peter Mancini, Carol Lombardi, and Sarah Bratko

Board members unable to attend included Ernest Aimonte, George Nee, Paul MacDoald, Oscar Vargas, Diony Garcia, Esq., and Jennifer
Goodrich Coia, Esq.

Others participating were Daniel McConaghy, Dana Peltier, Linda Maroun, and Melissa, O’Connor, Convention Center Authority; Dan
Schwartz, The VETS; Lawrence Lepore, Cheryl Cohen, Becca Ponder, Al Fera, RI Convention Center and AMP; Michael Crawley, Citrin
Cooperman; Bruce Leach, Legal Counsel; Robert Bromley, Senate Finance Committee; Chris Pelland and Adam Cabral, Withum; and
Debra Polselli, Recording Secretary.

Call to Order

Mr. Hirsh called the meeting to order at 11:01 a.m.

Announcement of Next Meeting Date

Mr. Hirsh stated that the next meeting will take place on Thursday, October 30, 2025 at 11:00 a.m.

Approval of July 2025 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

Mr. Hirsh requested a motion to approve the July 2025 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes. Upon a motion from Mr. Mancini, which
was seconded by Ms. Lombardi, it was unanimously

VOTED: to approve the minutes of the July Finance Committee meeting.

Executive Director's Report — Part 1
a. Review and Consideration of the Authority Audit FY25

Mr. McConaghy asked Mr. Crawley to review the FY25 audit with the committee members and stated that it would be voted upon later in
the agenda. Mr. Crawley stated that it was the 20t audit he has done here and wanted to acknowledge the effort put forth with this audit
because it had been the most challenging audit with conversion of the Authority’'s accounting system. He reported that the State
component needs to be filed by September 30t and with everyone’s hard work and dedication, they were able to complete it in time. Mr.
McConaghy stated that it demonstrated the team’s capabilities and mutual respect, and he then commended Mr. Crawley noting that
they would not have been able to complete it without him. Mr. McConaghy then introduced Mr. Pelland of the Withum Auditing firm who
stated that they were sympathetic to the Authority’s team since they were going through a conversion themselves and this audit took a
lot of hard work and dedication to complete on time. He then reviewed the Auditors’ responsibilities under GAAS, Management’s
responsibilities, their findings, and finally financial statement fraud risks (see attached PowerPoint presentation). Mr. Crawley asked if
there were any questions, and there were none. Mr. Pelland then reviewed the draft Independent Auditor's Report (see attached). Mr.
Crawley stated that this report is the same as what Mr. McConaghy sent out to the Authority earlier in the week. He reviewed the
Statements of Net Position (see attached) and explained the depreciation expenses in the statement at the June meeting. Mr. Hirsh
questioned what was included in the capital assets and how its valuation is determined, and Mr. Crawley replied that the original asset
costs are depreciated over time. Mr. Hirsh questioned if the new garage is included, and Mr. Crawley replied yes. He further stated that
debt service and capital is needed to service the debt and keep the building and its assets protected.




Mr. Pelland then reviewed cash flow noting that cash was down $4.5 million from 2024. With there being no questions on cash flow or
the audit notes, Mr. Hirsh requested a motion to accept the FY25 audit. Upon a motion from Mr. Mancini, which was seconded by Ms.
Lombardi, it was unanimously

VOTED: to accept the FY25 Audit.

Mr. Crawley noted that there is one more process left and that is State approval. He stated that if anything comes of it, they will address
it at that time. Mr. Hirsh commented that next year there would not be so much heavy lifting, and Ms. Peltier agreed that it would be
much better. Mr. Crawley noted that we converted our system before the State, but they are going through it now and not all systems are
supported now. Mr. Hirsh asked if the new system was better than the old system, and Mr. Crawley replied yes.

Finance (Month of July 2025)

a. The VETS - Dan Schwartz
Mr. Schwartz reviewed the July 2025 Income Statement, Executive Summary, and Event Listing (see attached). He stated that there was
no activity in the month of July, and they worked to keep expenses down better than budget. He stated that there was a loss of $125k,
which was $5k better than forecasted for the month. He reported that there is not a lot of programming in the summer, and they will
bounce back once they report on August. Mr. McConaghy noted that they used the month of July for needed repairs and cleaning in
preparation of the new season.

b. Rhode Island Convention Center — Lawrence Lepore

c.  Amica Mutual Pavilion — Lawrence Lepore

d. Innovation District Garage — Lawrence Lepore
Mr. Lepore reviewed the July 2025 Income Statements, Executive Summaries, and Event Listings (see attached) for the RICC, AMP,
and IDG. He stated that the Convention Center had a hard year last year and they worked hard on what they needed to do better. He
stated that they met every week with union stewards, reviewing scheduling and some meetings were difficult. He noted the importance
of holding people more accountable on how to schedule staff noting that we allowed too many full time employees to only work during
the week and not during events. He stated that when they started scheduling full time employees for events, he was hopeful that the July
financials would show improvement but when it did not and they looked at it more closely, July had a 5-week payroll versus the budget
which was a 4-week payroll, which skewed the numbers. Mr. Hirsh noted that the number of events were off as well, and Mr. Lepore
replied not dramatically and hoped that the amount of work being put into staffing and scheduling would flatten out now that they are
getting busy. Mr. Lepore commented that they have tried to understand how to best serve their clients with full time staff first and not fill
with part time staff if possible. Mr. Hirsh asked about overtime, and Mr. Lepore replied that there was a little overtime but not much. Mr.
Hirsh asked about food and beverage, and Mr. Fera stated that while he did not know the exact number of hours it was minimal in the
month of July. Mr. Lepore then explained some of the changes they put into place citing that sometimes a show calls for a female
custodian, which got into overtime, and now we close the restroom. He also noted the first right of changeovers and also that OVG starts
their week on a Friday, which is geared towards the entertainment industry. He stated that they are trying to adjust, and it has been
challenging. Mr. McConaghy commented that buildings are quiet on Mondays and Tuesdays rather than the weekend. Mr. Hirsh agreed
that it is not the business we are in. Mr. Lepore commented that they have a position available for a Zamboni driver at $26/hour and they
cannot fill the position. He stated that they are working with the union on some of its rules with seniority and they still cannot find someone.
Mr. Lepore stated that events look good at the Convention Center, but they just need to control costs. Mr. Hirsh questioned food and
beverage stating that food and beverage was less than half of what it was last year, but indirect expenses were doubled. Mr. Lepore
replied that last year there was a mix of issues and a lot more indirect expenses were absorbed last year with OVG coming on board but
assured the committee that they will see a major change moving forward.

Mr. Lepore then reported on the AMP stating that the AMP is showing profit and there was only one (1) event, WWE Raw, which was
very profitable. He noted that the AMP did incur expenses with hosting the CT Sun with the Governor where they had to change the
building over to basketball and make it presentable. Mr. Hirsh then asked what happens to the Sportservice staff when the AMP does
not have any events in the summer, and Mr. Lepore replied that they are laid off.

Mr. Lepore then reported on the IDG stating that the garage was a little off for the month, even though monthlies and dailies were both
up. He noted that there is so much upside to the garage commenting that he was there the other night and had to park on Level 5. Mr.
Hirsh agreed that the PPAC events bring a lot of business to the garage. Mr. McConaghy stated that they have an agreement with Coro
for approximately 120-130 spots.



Mr. Hirsh questioned whether there have been any more conversations with the Mayor’s Office encouraging nightlife and businesses to
get discount rates, and Mr. McConaghy replied that they would be coming next month, and they could talk at that time. Mr. Lepore closed
his report by stating he hopes that when they present next month the Committee will see a difference with all the changes that have been
made in an effort to save money.

e. Authority and Consolidated — Dan McConaghy
Mr. McConaghy reviewed the July 2025 Income Statement and Consolidated Income Statement (see attached) for the Authority. He
stated that they are sticking to budget, and the financials are pretty straightforward. He stated that their goal for next month is to catch
up on the consolidated financials.

Consultant's Report (Month of July 2025) — Mike Crawley

a. Statement of Net Position

b. Advanced Deposit Funding

c.  Accounts Payable Aging

d. Accounts Receivable Aging
Mr. Crawley reviewed the balance sheets, advance deposits, and aging reports (see attached) He reported that the balance sheet as of
June 30 is the same as the audit. He stated that we continue to be a positive current ratio, a healthy advance deposit funding, and our
payable reports are still under the target of 60 days and getting better. Ms. O’Connor noted that we received the payment from DCYF.

Executive Director's Report — Part 2

a. Review and Consideration of the RICCA Budget for FY27
Mr. McConaghy stated that each October the State requires the Authority to submit the following year's budget (FY 2027). He stated that
to fulfill our obligation, we have a proposed FY27 budget and if approved, Mr. Crawley will incorporate it into the State’s format and submit
it to them in the portal. He noted that this budget will be revised in the Spring as they get closer and have a better idea of what is
happening. He stated that they took the revised FY26 budget and tweaked it for FY27. He then asked for a quick review of each venue.

Mr. Schwartz reviewed the proposed budget for FY27 for The Vets (see attached). He stated that they look where they are year after
year with the level of programming and are budgeting for a profit of a little over $1700. He stated that they will be increasing their food
and beverage pricing, not significantly, still keeping them low. He noted that they do not want to be the highest or the lowest. He further
stated that they will be increasing the facility by $1.00 for all events except the RI Philharmonic because their subscriptions had already
gone out. He further reported that union contracts are up for negotiation, so legal fees have increased accordingly.

Mr. Lepore reviewed the proposed budget for FY27 for the Convention Center (see attached). He stated that he is aware of the CVB’s
intel on what is going on with the government and decreased the number of events in the budget. He stated that they are aware there
are still going to be challenges. Mr. McConaghy reminded the Committee that FIFA will be taking place in Boston next July and there is
no hotel availability in Providence during that time, which makes it hard to book meetings or conventions without available hotel rooms.
Ms. Ponder commented that they are looking at other events in the Exhibition Hall that do not have a hotel component.

Mr. Lepore reviewed the proposed budget for FY27 for the AMP (see attached). He stated that with the new NIL regulations, Providence
College could have a new team and new players every year and there is no way of knowing. He stated that Providence College is looking
to spend a great deal of money on the top NIL players. Mr. Hirsh questioned whether there is an opportunity for us to get a concert with
FIFA coming to the area, and Ms. Cohen replied that we are already working with The Rosendale Group on a potential Latin artist.

Mr. Lepore reviewed the proposed budget for FY27 for the IDG (see attached). He stated that he expects an increased profit in FY27.

Mr. McConaghy reviewed the proposed budget for FY27 for the Authority and Consolidated (see attached). He stated that the Authority
stays consistent from year to year, but state appropriations for capital are expected to decrease in FY27.

With there being no further discussion on the FY27 budget, Mr. Hirsh requested a motion to recommend the proposed budget to the full
Board. Upon a motion made by Mr. Mancini, which was seconded by Ms. Bratko it was unanimously

VOTED: to recommend the proposed FY27 Budget to the Board.



8. Adjournment

With there being no further business to be discussed by the Finance Committee, Mr. Hirsh asked for a motion to adjourn. Upon a motion
duly made by Ms. Venturini, which was seconded by Mr. Mancini, it was unanimously

VOTED: to adjourn at 12:01 p.m.



